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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . .(gavel). . . Aloha, and good morning, and welcome to everyone,
Members, people in the gallery from the communities. I am Councilmember Medeiros,
and the Chair of the Infrastructure Management Committee. With quorum, I will call this
meeting to order, and this is...today is June 28 th , 2010 and it's one minute after 9:00 a.m.
Members, thank you for being here so early in the morning on...after a weekend. I
appreciate your attendance, and I'll take the opportunity at this time to introduce the
Members. First, we have the Committee Vice—Chair, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE—CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. Then I'd like to introduce the Council Chair,
Danny Mateo, Member. And the Council Vice—Chair, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. Our lady of the morning, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. Then we have Mr. Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. Excused this morning is Member Kaho`ohalahala. And a
Non—Voting Member that is present with us this morning is Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning, thank you for being here. The first item...we're gonna
ask the Administration representative to come down for Item 41, and while they're
coming down I'd like to introduce the other members up here and Staff, from the
Corporation Counsel, we have Mr. David Galazin, good morning.
MR. GALAZIN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: And representing the Department of Environmental Management, we
have the Deputy Director, Mr. Gregg Kresge.
MR. KRESGE: Good morning.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: And, Mr. Kresge, would you introduce, I believe, your Engineer.
MR. KRESGE: Yes, and we have with us this morning Wastewater Reclamation Division
Engineer, Scott Rollins
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, good morning, Mr. Rollins
MR. ROLLINS: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: From our Committee we have our Committee Staff, Ms. Camille
Sakamoto, Committee Secretary to my far left, and to my near left, Mr. Mike Geers, our
Legislative Analyst. This morning, Members, we have two items that we're gonna be
discussing on our agenda. The first Item is IM-41, ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF
SEWERLINE EASEMENT FOR THE MAUI LANI PHASE 8 SUBDIVISION IN
KAHULUI. The second Item will be IM-34, a bill RELATING TO THE
DEVELOPMENT ON STEEP SLOPE TERRAIN. So at this time, Members, I'm gonna
allow public testimony. And we have signed up at this point, we have four testifiers. So
before we allow them to testify, I wanna take this time to ask everyone to turn off their
cell phones or pagers or any other electronic devices you may have. I will allow three
minutes for testimony, when the yellow light comes on it'll mean 30 seconds to conclude,
and the red light means you need to conclude, okay. Testifiers are requested to state their
name for the record and to indicate who they are representive [sic], if applicable. Okay,
at this time we're gonna call up the first testifier, and this is Mr. Howard Hanzawa who'll
be testifying on Item 34, and he'll be testifying for himself. Mr. Hanzawa, good
morning.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. HANZAWA: Good morning, Chair. My name is Howard Hanzawa, I actually work for
Kaanapali Land Management, but I'm testifying on Item 34. I don't think it really is
gonna affect our projects there, but I do have a concern for the small property owners
whether they be in Kula, Olinda, Waihee, or wherever. I compared the subject, Steep
Terrain Bill to the provisions in the grading ordinance in Honolulu. And the...they have
the same provision in regards to being concerned with the slope, the, the cut slope
actually. However, they do not have the first provision in there in regards to drainage
which reads, the...if the proposed construction includes grading affecting drainage
patterns within 100 feet of an existing slope greater than 15 feet in height and with a
grade steeper than 40 percent or modification to an existing slope with a cut greater than
15 feet in height, and--excuse me--grade steeper than 40 percent, an engineering slope, an
engineering slope hazard report shall be required. I believe the concern with drainage is
already taken care of in the County of Maui's drainage rules which reads, additional
storm runoff from a new development shall be disposed of at an appropriate drainage
outlet or drainage system, so as not to create any additional adverse effects to adjacent or
downstream properties. What I'm concerned about is that the small property owner will
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have to hire a surveyor to check their neighboring...the downstream neighbors' property
and that might be problematic. If a plan goes to DSA for review, the reviewer won't
know what's...what the slope is downstream. So he's gonna have to hire a surveyor to
go into the downstream property, and is the neighbor gonna allow him to survey the slope
of the downstream property? It also reads that if there's any change to the drainage from
the property, it doesn't say whether it can be reduced. If he...if there's a reduced...the
drainage from the development, you know, there really isn't... shouldn't be a concern and
that's what the drainage rules require, that there be no adverse effects on downstream
properties. So I'm just concerned that just to comply with the provision, a individual
homeowner is gonna have to hire a surveyor, first of all, which is problematic in itself to
go into somebody else's property to check the slope; and the drainage rules for the
County of Maui always, already has a provision to protect the downstream properties.
Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Hanzawa. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Question.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mr. Hanzawa. So just so
we can clarify your testimony, so what's in our ordinance versus what's in Honolulu
might be unnecessary, I guess redundant because we already have a provision in our
other Code that addresses drainage. And if it's left as is--this proposal--then we're
looking at a number of property owners that could be facing an unnecessary expense?
MR. HANZAWA: That's what my feeling is. And the second part is verbatim actually from the
County's drainage rules, I mean the County of Honolulu's grading ordinance so...and I
haven't heard any adverse...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If, if I may ask you, can you cite any particular examples that
could occur -MR. HANZAWA: Well-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --in any of the areas?
MR. HANZAWA: Well, yeah, even the, the way it reads, even if the adjacent roadway is steeper
than what's shown in the provision, you know, the property owner who's gonna be
building a home by the way it's provided will have to hire a surveyor too and, and then a
soils engineer. So just by the way it reads, if, if somebody up in Kula needs to or wants
to build a house and the reviewer in DSA doesn't know what's down below, he's gonna
require the property owner to hire the surveyor to see what the grades are below him.
And that in itself, would the neighbor allow the surveyor to go into his property to
measure the grades? So I, I just see a problem with that.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Alright, thank you. Can, can, can you leave us a copy of your
written testimony as well?
MR. HANZAWA: I'll, I'll write one up and send it to you folks.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Baisa followed by Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you very much,
Mr. Hanzawa, for being here this morning. I'm trying to understand your testimony.
What I hear is you're saying that in the drainage rules that the County already has, this is
covered, this situation that we're putting in this ordinance. Now if it is there, what will
be the difference between what is being proposed and what is in the rules, because you
say you have a concern that, you know, if we put that in there, you'll have to hire a
surveyor, maybe a soils engineer or whatever to determine the drainage impacts. That is
not covered in the drainage rules? There's a difference in the two things?
MR. HANZAWA: Well, the drainage rules stipulate that there be no adverse impacts to
downstream properties.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. HANZAWA: So with that, you know, the property owner should be aware of that, he
should take provisions such as making a small basin to reduce the flow or, or spread the
flow. While the provision reads that any change--it doesn't say if it's...even if it's a
beneficial change--any change in a drainage will require a study.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So the new provision is more stringent then, and defines it more
than the one in the drainage rules?
MR. HANZAWA: It's different in the sense that it provides a stipulation on the slope down
below, yeah. While the drainage rules doesn't talk about it...about that...it...the
drainage rules just say there shall be no adversity impacts -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MR. HANZAWA: --due to drainage.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm, I'm trying to understand the difference. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Baisa. Any further questions? Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Howard, I...I'm gonna preface this statement just because, you
know, the incident that happened in Honolulu, and it happened to a cousin of mine whose
daughter was crushed by a boulder and killed. And there is an upcoming lawsuit and I
have...I had my staff make copies, Members, for you to read later on. But I'm gonna,
I'm gonna talk to you about...because you seem to say that just because Honolulu has
something, Mr. Chairman, that it is okay because ours is that way or ours is a little
stringent. But I'm not concerned about that. I lost my cousin's daughter that was
26 years old, and she was crushed by a boulder in Nu'uanu. And I wanna, I wanna
preference it by opening statements during this lawsuit, and it says the issue for the jury
will be whether the city should be held responsible for her death. In opening statements,
Onishi family lawyer Steven Kim said the city maintained a drainage system that
funneled rainwater through a ditch on the side of Pacific Heights Road and through an
eight—inch pipe that emptied into the hillside above the Onishi home. Kim said the
family's experts will show that the boulder was in the path of that rainwater, which
eroded support and led to the tragedy. We're going to show that the water flow was a
significant cause of the boulder coming down at that moment, Kim told the jury. Now,
you know, Nu'uanu and I'm not saying that it may be the same in this area here, but then
I, I read from another article, Mr. Chairman, and this happened to do in Hawaii Kai. And
it talks about two boulders that crashed down a hillside, struck two parked cars, broke a
window at one of the condos a week ago, geologists and structural engineers have found
three large boulders above the two buildings that are causing concern because of their
"apparent instability". Last night's announcement capped months of concern over the
danger of falling rocks on Oahu that began when a five—ton boulder crashed into a
Nu'uanu home, killing 26—year—old Dara Rei Onishi. The meeting was held amid
heavy rain, which officials have said was a contributing factor in the Thanksgiving Day
rockslide at 7168 Hawaii Kai Road. And then the article goes to say a number of rockfall
incidents have plagued Oahu this year. My concern is this, Howard, in the area that
we're talking about specifically today, Mr. Chairman, I think when we look at the island,
we can agree that this is where a great amount of rainfall occurs, okay. Now you're
saying that the drainage covers it. My concern is if anybody is going to go up in a steep
incline, you're worried about the cost of something, I'm worried about a cost of a life.
I'm worried about something that has, has occurred already. And, and, and, and you're
worried about what it's going to cost should somebody have to develop. I'm worried
about the fact that in an area where there is such a steep incline, we have to be concerned.
What we're doing now is going higher and higher into areas where in this situation where
there's a lot of rain. And when it rains, it pours. I think people in that area can attest,
and, and so every instant, is very different. And, and, and so this is my concern, Howard,
you're worried about the cost, what about the cost of a death? Do you think that our
ordinance is a sure proof one, or shouldn't we be more concerned when it comes to
slopes?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Hanzawa, any response to that?
MR. HANZAWA: Your cousin's daughter was a real tragedy, tragedy. I, I followed that, all, all
the articles, and I am aware in Honolulu there have been other incidents. In Honolulu, of
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course it's much more developed than Maui is, and you're right, you know, as the island
gets more developed they go into steeper areas. My, my concern is just for the small guy
who's maybe have had his property for years and since he didn't build his home, you
know, several years ago the cost just keep on escalating. For the larger developers it
doesn't really matter, they already have consultants on board, they have their surveyors,
and soils engineers, and so forth. But I, I just look at it from a macro standpoint, and I,
I...I'm aware of the potential for, you know, that kind of disaster, it's a disaster.
However, Maui still yet is different from Honolulu. The...I, I refer to the drainage rules,
we, we have that in place. The grading ordinances are similar, but they have their
differences too. So I was just looking at the whole picture.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Howard, my concern is why should we if there's a natural...if
people are building up on a mountain, why should we allow anybody to grade and fill? If
they wanna build, they build according to the natural environment, and they should not be
able to cut or drill, because what occurs then is then water patterns change. And I think
we wanna leave that alone, because what we do is then we divert water that may run with
more force because now it's not following it's...the natural patterns. Why shouldn't we
just tell people that they should not be able to grade? Or maybe, you know, when we hit
a certain point where there is a, a lot of concern because of low-lying neighborhood, I
don't know if we should allow even building.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Nishiki, we're gonna have to limit it to just -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So-CHAIR MEDEIROS: --his-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --Howard -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --so shouldn't, shouldn't...because I, I respect you and I...you,
you may not be able to say anything right now. . .(inaudible). . . for an answer, but, but
my question is why should we allow any kind of mass grading in situations like this
when, when there's a steep slope?
MR. HANZAWA: Yeah. Well, again, you know, when a provision is legislated, the reviewers
really don't know when they see a plan come in, what the situation is in that surrounding
area. So even if say it doesn't fall in within the criteria, the property owner still is
gonna...may be required to hire a surveyor to go out and then submit a map that shows,
oh, it doesn't even fall in within the given criteria. But he's gonna have to pay for it, so,
that's, you know, part of my concern.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and finally my last question. If it is in a highly area
where it rains, shouldn't there be more concern for erosion and, and, and things of that
sort?
MR. HANZAWA: Oh, definitely, you know, I actually had a hand in developing the drainage
rules 15 years ago, so that, that's really taken...that's taken into consideration.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other questions for the testifiers?
Mr. Kaho`ohalahala, and before you ask your questions I wanna welcome you to our
meeting this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Howard.
MR. HANZAWA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I just wanted to get back to the drainage rules
that you talked about, and I'm looking at our Chapter 12 on, on drain ways. When you
look at the, the language of this, you know, there is a section that's called restrictions, but
it really leaves that kind of decision to the person who's going to potentially impact any
kind of drain ways. But it doesn't leave any kinds of, of standards for what that is. It's
really left to the person to, to think about, you know, make sure that you're not gonna
build over a drain way, make sure you're not gonna block it. But there's, there's nothing
in there that describes some of the, the more important things that I think we're talking
about and we're looking at exact slopes, you know, we're looking at quantifying this so
that it's not left to, to someone to sort of make a decision based on the fact that there's
really no other standard in the language, you know. So, so what is your comment about
that?
MR. HANZAWA: Yeah, the drainage rules give, you know, the parameters for drainage from
any development, big and small. Like you say, it doesn't have a, a quantifying language
in there as to what will be required to submit to the County. But the grading ordinance
does, so per the provisions of the grading ordinance, any project that's over one acre in
size or have a cut or fill of greater than two feet or over a 100 yards, requires a submittal
of a grading plan for...and requirement for a grading permit. And that...that's when the
County will take a look to see what the provisions for drainage are included in the plan.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. HANZAWA: But that's a good question.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then, you know, and I, I guess your earlier
comment about, you know, again Member Nishiki's concern about the cost that might be
involved to a, a small landowner perhaps who is wanting to develop. And then I, I
wanted to just comment and say I think that the, the intent of this, this amendment being
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proposed for, for today is, is to not necessarily place that burden, but is...it's mainly to
ensure that anyone that's downstream will be considered, yeah.
MR. HANZAWA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So the, the way that the development is moving
right now, we're sort of having to catch up, because while there are laws in place right
now, they seem to be laws that are, are allowing for these kinds of developments on steep
slopes. So it seems that it's incumbent upon us to make sure that we understand what is
occurring, we understand what has already occurred in incidences that deal with steep
slopes. And perhaps it is incumbent and prudent upon this Council, to try now address
those situations before it becomes a, a potential hazard or, or, or danger -MR. HANZAWA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --to the community So, so I think that's why
we're offering these kinds of amendments today.
MR. HANZAWA: Let me also say that there should be a clear definition of the...of a slope. It
refers to the percent of slope in the proposed language, but there are a couple ways to
define a percent of slope. The term that the engineers normally use is the height divided
by the run, you know, the horizontal distance is the run. There are...there is another way
where the degree of slope is divided by 90 degrees, and that's...they're totally different.
The second one is actually twice as much as the first one. I, I take it that the way it's
written it's by the definition that engineers normally use.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. We'll take a look at that to make sure that
we understand what you're saying, but I appreciate your, your comments.
MR. HANZAWA: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Member Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, when you provide your written
testimony, if you can provide us with some illustrations in regards to what you just
mentioned so that we get a fairly good idea, you know, what is 40 percent and the like.
MR. HANZAWA: Oh, you're gonna make, make me work harder. ... (chuckles)...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (Chuckles)...
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, because you look at us, we're not engineers, so that kind
of information is helpful. Thank you.
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MR. HANZAWA: Yeah, okay, I'll do that.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. Any further questions? Seeing none, Mr. Hanzawa, thank
you for your testimony and for being here this morning.
MR. HANZAWA: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Next we have Ms. Charlotte Tones, and she'll be testifying also
on Item 34. She's testifying for herself, and also for the Wailuku Height Coalition.
Ms. Torres, good morning.
MS. TORRES: Good morning, thank you so much. My name is Charlotte Torres and I have
been a resident of Wailuku Heights for over 20 years. I am every grateful for the
opportunity to come here and thank the County Council for their attention to this matter.
I would especially like to thank Sol Kaho`ohalahala and Chairman Medeiros for their
diligence in pursing this bill relating to development on steep terrain. As you know the
Coalition has been concerned about this matter for over three years. We have attempted
to engage the County and Mr. Arakawa on this issue, fighting to ensure that future
development above Wailuku Heights should only occur after taking into account
environmental, safety, water, and archeological concerns. At no point has the Coalition
publicly stated that no development should occur as Mr. Arakawa chose to accuse us of at
the last hearing. The importance of this bill cannot be understated. We need to act on it
as quickly as possible to prevent further desecration of our island. The property that has
already been developed was done without the Coalition's knowledge. Also there has
been grubbing and grading done without permits in the past, and I would like to know
what the County did in response to that. As the saying goes, it is easier to ask for
forgiveness, then permission. The Coalition would like there to be substantial fines when
this occurs. Somehow $200 or a maximum of $1,000 does not seem to be an adequate
deterrent. Finally, this ordinance should have a neighborhood notification provision to
prevent this type of situation from happening again. Again, thank you on behalf of the
Coalition and the people of Maui County for keeping Maui, Maui, and protecting the
aina. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Ms. Torres, for your attendance this morning and your
testimony. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you once again
for your testimony. Next testifying we have Ms. Irene Bowie, also testifying on Item 34,
on behalf of Maui Tomorrow. Ms. Bowie?
MS. BOWIE: Good morning, Chair and Council Members. I'm Irene Bowie, Executive
Director of Maui Tomorrow Foundation. I would also like to extend our thanks to, to
Chair Medeiros and Councilmember Kaho`ohalahala for the hard work they've put into
this ordinance. And I had a whole different set of testimony but I'm gonna shift gears,
and number one, I'm gonna remind Council Members of the site visit that you made in
January to this Wailuku Heights area and the steepness of the slope there. And I think
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everyone that went on that site visit felt strongly that we need some precautionary
measures before we have really unfortunate incidents happen as have happened on Oahu.
Number one, I would say I don't think the, the small guy is the one we're really looking
at, at any of this. I think, you know, we're not building affordable housing up on the
sides of the mountains here. Those, those are, you know, million dollar plus estates, and
certainly the one that we have above Wailuku Heights fits that category. So it's
misleading to say that this is gonna be some kind of a hardship on the little guy if they
have to follow, you know, this new ordinance. And I would point out, I'm gonna read
from a resolution from a Neighborhood Board in Aina Haim in September of 2008, this
was regarding a 75 acre property upslope of the Aina Haim neighborhood. It said growth
in East Honolulu should occur by infilling existing built-up areas rather than spreading
development onto steep slopes, higher elevations, undeveloped mountain ridges and
valley walls or deeper recesses of the valley. It goes on to say that it is also an area
identified by the USGS as containing vertisols. The steep slope is the perfect setting for a
process geologists call mass wasting, where heavy clumps of rock and soil unhinge from
a hill, slide, tumble, and ooze downwards under the unending influence of gravity. They
further go on to express the neighborhood's concerns regarding drainage and runoff,
flooding, liability and property damage, zoning construction, utilities, ingress/egress,
sensitive community cultural issues, viewshed and visual impairments, fire safety, soil
instability—movement, and slope destabilization. They passed the resolution denying
this, this particular project. So it's not okay in Honolulu either, they're learning from,
from things, that we should take, take their, you know, what they've done and learn from
it as well. And also, there was a lot of research put into this on a steep development
ordinances throughout the country, so there's a lot of knowledge and expertise behind
this ordinance, and I hope that the Council will pass this through. It will be to the benefit
of our entire community Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Ms. Bowie, for your testimony this morning. And I'd like to
ask if you--because you said you had to shift gears from your testimony--if you have
written testimony you'd like to submit, please do, to our Secretary-MS. BOWIE: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --so that all the Members will have that.
MS. BOWIE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. And, Members, open for discussion. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And I, I was just gonna ask the same
thing, Member...Chair Medeiros, if we could have that in writing. And could you state
the area, the specific development, so that I can look it up online?
MS. BOWIE: Sure, it is...this was the resolution for the Kulia'ou'ou-Kalani Iki [sic]
Neighborhood Board. It was...I don't see that it has like a TMK number on it, but it was
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upslope of Aina Haim neighborhood, this particular neighborhood and I'll make you
copies of this -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please.
MS. BOWIE: --so you'll...yeah, you'll see it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And then the last question I have for
you, you mentioned earlier that there were a lot of studies and, and other ordinances
throughout the nation that have been...are, are being brought forth or are in force at this
time. Can, can you give me an area where I could go and look at, 'cause I know
California has a lot of them.
MS. BOWIE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Where would you recommend, 'cause you had some ideas
the last time we talked.
MS. BOWIE: Gilroy, California is one we particularly looked at, also Boise, Idaho was another
one that, that comes to mind.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. BOWIE: And, and there were certainly more than that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. No, that at least that's giving me some, some...
MS. BOWIE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And Gilroy is known for its garlic, yeah?
MS. BOWIE: ... (Chuckles)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the garlic capital of the United States, Gilroy,
California. I happen to drive through, if you ever drive through there and you like garlic,
well, you're gonna really enjoy that drive. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Victorino. Members...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I think, Irene, I think you're
referring to Kuli'ou'ou, yeah, and not Kulia. Yeah. Kuli'ou'ou Valley, yeah, on Oahu.
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MS. BOWIE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Other Members, questions?
Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. You said that a lot of that information...you used a
terminology, what was that word that you used to describe these...
MS. BOWIE: The vertisol, vertisol.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MS. BOWIE: Yeah, that, I mean I didn't know what that was either until I began really -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MS. BOWIE: --researching into this. And that is where the topsoil is stable and the under soil
begins to move. And so you get like an underneath landslide that's happening, and that is
exactly what these soil engineers are up there testing for. That's why all of this is so
important, they're not building on a, on a flat slope and these things could happen, so you
need experts. And again, if people want to live up on the mountain, if they have the
desire and the means, then they can also go the extra mile and pay for some of this
expertise to ensure that it's safe not only for their own home but for all those people
below them. I mean these people in Wailuku Heights have had a valid concern on this,
and I've said before, we...only...because we've been in such a prolonged drought, have
we not had the rains, you know, up in the West Maui mountains that we've had in years
passed that could have really, really been frightening for, for the people that live below
that one particular development up there. And also, I think what's really important in this
is the re-vegetation plan in this, the reforestation that's included in this. Because as you
can see from the development up there, they've really not done anything They topped
that ridge and they've kind of left it alone, and if we had rain, there, there would be
problems. It's, it's an obligation that they need to, to do these things to have as little
impact as possible. That's the trade off they get for living above the rest of us.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You, you quoted USGS studies. Is that something that
addresses areas like this that we need to look at or, or, or get terminologies to describe the
concern?
MS. BOWIE: The...they, you know, those studies, certainly the USGS does those types of
studies and you can get a lot of information in it. I, I guess more than anything though, I
would say, you know, we've, we've had this bill, we deferred it because we knew we
needed to go a little bit further for stronger language, but I urge you to pass this through
and, and let's get this going before...we know that we have another property owner up
there that would love to start going on this at any time. And we have another 400 acre
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owner up there that we don't even know what their plans are. So, and that's...that
section there is right above old Wailuku Heights, so think of the people that have lived
there for years and years. Again, I remind you everyone up there thought that this was
conservation land. Everyone was shocked to find out that it was ag land and that it
was...and it was available for development.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Are you done, Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. Other Members, any question for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you, Ms. Bowie, for your testimony this morning.
MS. BOWIE: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Next testifying is Hal Davis...and testifying on Item 34, and he'll be
testifying for himself. And before he starts his testimony, anyone else wanting to sign up
for testimony please do so in the lobby desk. Thank you. Mr. Davis, good morning.
MR. DAVIS: Good morning. And thank you for letting me speak. I do live in Wailuku
Heights, and I observe throughout history that we have 50-year rains and we have
100-year rains, and now I find from. . . (inaudible). . .that we have 500-year rains. I don't
think there's a calendar for them. But one thing comes to mind that when you build in
the top of the mountain, gravity takes, takes over and, and when it rains, it comes down to
us that live at the bottom. So please pass this ordinance. Protect our, our people and
protect our island. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Davis. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you once again. Okay, that's the last testifier that has signed up prior to the
meeting. I'll give this opportunity to anyone in the gallery wishing to testify to step
forward at this time to the podium, and you can sign up later. Anyone wishing to testify?
Seeing none, Members, without objections, the Chair will close testimony at this time.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members, so ordered.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
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ITEM NO. 41: ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF SEWERLINE EASEMENT FOR
MAUI LANI PHASE 8 SUBDIVISION (KAHULUI) (C.C. No. 10-116)
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So, Members, if you'll turn to your agenda, we do have that explained
two items this morning. And the first item will be IM-41, ACCEPTING THE
DEDICATION OF SEWER EASEMENT FOR MAUI LANI PHASE 8 SUBDIVISION
IN KAHULUI. The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 10-116, from
the Director of Environmental Management, transmitting a proposed resolution entitled
ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF SEWERLINE EASEMENT FOR THE MAUI LANI
PHASE 8 SUBDIVISION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.44.015, MAUI COUNTY
CODE. The purpose of the proposed resolution is to accept the dedication from Maui
Lani Village Center, Inc., of a sewerline easement over and across a portion of
Lot 11-D-1-A-1-B-A [sic] of Maui Lani Phase 8, Subdivision, Kahului, Maui for a
12-inch sewerline outside the Maui Lani Parkway. So at this time, Members, I'd like to
ask the Deputy Director of the Department of Environmental Management, Deputy
Director Kresge for an overview of this Item.
MR. KRESGE: Good morning, Committee Chair Medeiros and Committee Members. I'm
going to have Scott Rollins fill you in on this since he is more aware of this project and
he'll do that now.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Rollins, if you'll please.
MR. ROLLINS: Good morning, Members. This is an easement within the Maui Lani
Subdivision along Maui Lani Parkway. It's the new part of the roadway that was recently
opened. The majority of the sewers within the, the street right-of-away which will be
dedicated to the County, this portion of the sewer was slightly deflected outside that
right-of-away to miss some archeological finds that were found during construction.
We've reviewed the easement, we've reviewed the, the construction, and all of it's
acceptable to our Department. Thanks.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Rollins At this time, Members; the Chair will
open the floor for discussion. Any questions for the Department at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Recommendation.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Recommendation.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Seeing no...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, we have Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Just since you mentioned that the, the ease,
the...I guess the, the pipeline is moved out or deflected because of sites that were in the
path, I'm, I'm assuming. So can you tell us what that is?
MR. ROLLINS: I cannot tell you. We have members from Maui Lani here who can explain
that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So we're accepting a, a line, but you
don't know how it's being deflected? I, I don't understand.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Department?
MR. KRESGE: I, I think what Mr. Rollins was saying is that we're not aware of the specific
archeological finds, but the request to move the, the sewerline outside of that and deflect
it off of the parkway was acceptable to us. So, but we do have representatives from Maui
Lani here who could answer your questions more specifically to the archeological finds if
that is what you're asking about.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Well, I'm asking the question because that's
what you mentioned in your report to us, you're saying it's being deflected for
archeological finds, but then you have no idea what that is?
MR. KRESGE: Other than we shouldn't put the sewerline through it, so it has to go around the
archeological find.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. KRESGE: And as long as it meets the standards.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I would like to understand what we
accepted and why the deflection is mentioned by you, and that's what I'm asking about.
So...
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Department?
MR. ROLLINS: It was noted during construction that there were archeological finds out there.
Also, a storm drain line was deflected in the same manner and follows the same
alignment just outside our sewerline. We understand it was burials in the area. We were
not totally consulted in the, in the decision for where this alignment would be, but we
were asked if this alignment would be acceptable with the Department, and we were.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So you see no, no issues for the County
of Maui then in that regard?
MR. ROLLINS: Not at this time, no.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: But you have no idea what it is?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: ...Let, let me intervene, Mr. Kaho`ohalahala. I, I think as was mentioned
and it may not be to your satisfaction, that the archeological finds were the determining
point of realigning the line. But I think what you're pursing is what are those
archeological finds. And one that was mentioned was burials found, and I'm not sure
what else. And if you're pursing that, I'm not sure if the Department can answer this.
Can you Department? Other than the burial finds?
MR. KRESGE: No, we can't, and that's why we have asked representatives from Maui Lani to
be here today.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Mr. Kaho`ohalahala, would you like to
have the representative from Maui Lani come down and see if they can provide you
further information on this?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Well, Chair, I guess, you know, when...if we're
going from a Department say to the Council that, that everything's fine, we're accepting
this, and by the way there's a deflection here for this path that's...that we're accepting as
part of that easement, I would make wanna make sure that what we're accepting is
something that we have full information and, and disclosure and knowledge about, so that
this Council in accepting this is understanding what it is accepting. But then for you to
say then that you don't have any information further than that, is just troubling to me that
so we, we go on and we accept this and if there should be something that comes up later
on, the liability for any of those kinds of instances that may be related to, to burials or to
other kinds of sites that are there is a, is going to be our responsibility. So we are
accepting responsibility over and beyond just the...an easement to a, a drainage, you
know, or, or a sewerline. What is the deflection? Is it in...is it done in a manner that's
going to ensure that where these sites are located that we'll never have problems with
them in the future? You talk not only about the sewerline, but you talk about a ditch...a
drainage ditch that's also being deflected, you know, as, as part of that. So just a little bit
more information other than that, you know, we're gonna accept this and everything's
fine, by the way, there's a deflection, you know. So that's all my concerns.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Victorino followed by Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I, I would then ask, Mr. Chair, and, and for your
consideration, that if this question is being brought up--and it's a good question--then can
we have the Maui Lani people come down and maybe explain to us what specifically this,
I guess diversion, or, or, or, or changing of the track and what it meant in this whole
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project. 'Cause they're the ones that have been doing all of this work, and, and I can see
the map here and where the diversion occurs but beyond that it's no long explanation. So
I would like to ask your permission in that area, Mr. Chair, but at your -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --your approval.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Victorino, and I will express that to the Members, but
before I do, Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
You know, I, I appreciate
Member Kaho`ohalahala's questioning of the Department. It seems like something is
lacking in regards to inspections. If something need...I, I don't know if Environmental
Management do inspections on sewerline as they're being constructed. You know, most,
most utility companies would do that, and if there is a deflection, then they should have
been made aware and, and have someone go out there to verify, you know, what's being
done. But, you know, maybe going forward, I would suggest, highly suggest to the
Department that, you know, the inspections be done. If anything changes, that they be
aware in regards to the changes before having the developer proceed with the
construction work. I, I don't know if the Department has done that, maybe they could
provide us with some information.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Department?
MR. ROLLINS: Yes, Councilmember Pontanilla. Development Services Administration was
out there for inspection during construction. Our construction inspector was also out
there periodically and we did final inspection on the, on the installation.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: For this particular incident, was he there?
MR. ROLLINS: He was consulted at the time, but most of the changes were done through
Development Services Administration, through the subdivision process.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So as far as this change then, there was no inspection done at
that time?
MR. ROLLINS: We were there-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Physical inspection?
MR. ROLLINS: We were there at the construction time and we approved the change in the
alignment. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.

INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 28, 2010

CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. Other Members? Member Molina followed by
Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So just following up, you know,
Mr. Victorino's request, I'd like to hear from Maui Lani as well, because maybe Corp.
Counsel can, you know, add to what I'm gonna say. We accept this, we, we accept the
problems, any potential problems with liabilities that go with this. Because when I see
burials and I don't have that specific information, what was contained in these burials,
you know, I, I just wanna make sure that if we do accept anything of this nature, that we
know what we're getting ourselves into. So I, I think I'd just like more specifics, 'cause I
know I can already sense there's some uncomfortableness from my colleagues, and I, I, I
share that feeling of discomfort too at this time. Maybe if I could ask Mr. Galazin if he
can kind of verify what I said if we do accept this.
MR. GALAZIN: Yeah, I mean you're, you're absolutely right. Whatever interest that we have
in that property we become partially responsible for. I mean the easement that we have is
nonexclusive, you know, the, the landowner which is...I think it's Maui Lani, Maui Lani
Village Center, you know, still the, the underline landowners still would share some of
the responsibility. But, certainly anything that would arise in connection with our use of
the sewer system in that area, yeah, that could be an issue for us. So I think it would be
prudent to hear some more.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Galazin. So, Mr. Chair, at
your behest if we could have the Maui Lani representative, and if they could provide us
specifics on that burial issues. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Nishiki, would you want the Maui Lani representative down at
this time, before you--excuse me?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, I wanna ask the Administration first.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Go ahead, proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What does deflection mean?
MR. ROLLINS: It's the change in alignment.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. You know when Sol and then Mr. Molina had some
concerns...and, and, and, and, personally I do also. When these burials were found, what
is the responsibility of government to make sure that we deal with it properly? Do you
have any experts within your Department?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Department?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes or no?
MR. KRESGE: The, I guess, you know, our, our issues that we deal with the sewer inspection
and structural and how that happens and how, you know, it meets the wastewater needs.
The developer has to get approval from the State Historic Preservation District [sic].
They're the ones who are the regulatory body for that type of work and we do not have
that expertise in our Department.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But you then allow the developer to proceed. So did you allow
the developer to proceed, and under what information did you get before you allowed the
developer to proceed?
MR. KRESGE: Well, in the planning process it, as I understand it, you know, if this is a
subdivision that's handled through DSA--Development Services Administration--there
are several parts that need to be completed prior to them being able to go forward. One
of them is the historic review by the State Historic Preservation District [sic], that, you
know, those reviews have been before this Council, this body before about, you know,
what happens with that on all projects, and some of those in addition result in monitoring
plans and management of the...whatever the finds are. Our, our process of that...our
portion of that is to review structural plans for the water...the wastewater use. Beyond
that we would rely on the State Historic Preservation District [sic] to govern whatever
archeological finds that are there and management of them.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
MR. KRESGE: That's beyond our purview.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When you, when you, when you really look and, and hear what
they have...what they are saying, okay, is that they obviously based on what was
presented to them from the developer, allowed the developer to proceed with this
deflection or whatever, okay. Prior to that, obviously there must have been shoddy work
done by the developer and...or representatives that work for them, because upon, upon
the work being done, then these remains were found. And so now we've got to change it.
So obviously it's saying that, you know, until they started digging where they were going
and then they ran into the burials, then they shifted gears. And, and, and this is, I think,
the concern that Sol has. I, I don't speak for him, but for me it does.
MR. KRESGE: Can I just make a correction to something?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
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MR. KRESGE: We don't give the approval to proceed. We...again, we view to make sure that
the structural integrity of the, of the engineered line is correct. The, the approval for it to
proceed is...would be through DSA, that's not through us.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right, right, I understand that.
MR. KRESGE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I understand that. I guess my, my, my, my whole concern,
Mr. Chairman, is whoever is doing the work and, and then you dig and then you find iwi,
there is the concern, you know, why is that occurring, and, and now I'd like to ask the
developer.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. Okay, I think Member Pontanilla, then Member Kaho`ohalahala.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you...
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, before, you ask your...continue the discussion, many of your
concerns or questions may be answered by the representative coming down at this time
instead of waiting. Is that agreeable by all? Any objections to...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I would like to-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman, you know, I was gonna just say that, you know,
maybe have the developer come down, provide us with more information. I, I know they
are very careful in regards to iwi in the whole area -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Maui Lani-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just as an example, you know, Binhi At Ani, when they were
building their building, SHPD...when they found bones, SHPD was notified, and the
building construction stopped for almost two years before they started again. So I'm sure
they're diligent in their work, but maybe then can explain to us. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Member Kaho' ohalahala, you wanna ask it now or wait
until ...okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --the reason why I asked the, the question
original...I mean initially, because when we accept this, when something happens to the
sewerline, we will be responsible to go in, and, and repair, correct? So you will be called.
So let's say there's a leak, or...and if that leak is at the location of this, this deflection,
what will you know about the deflection in terms of how you're gonna deal with that
leak? How are you gonna repair something when you have no knowledge about what is
in the location, perhaps, of that deflected sewerline?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Department, you have a response?
MR. ROLLINS: Yeah, the deflection occurred to go around the whole site that was, that was
found. So at, at...any leaks that would happen in that sewerline would be well outside
the, the finds that were, were discovered during construction.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And, and that you know for a fact?
Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Okay, Members, if there's no
objections, the Chair will call down the representative from Maui Lani.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objections.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members. Can we have the representative from the Maui
Lani project come down, and would you identify yourself and your position with Maui
Lani?
MS. PACI: Good morning. Leiane Paci, I'm a partner with Maui Lani.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. We're gonna offer the Members time for questions
now. Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess what I would like from, from Ms. Paci is really,
what was done and the specific finds, when they were found, and the specific case in
point that the, that made her...made them deflect in that area. And how in, you know, to
make sure that there is no other situations that are occurring as we proceed. So I guess
that's what I want, an explanation from her. I mean I think that's what, I mean I don't
know what others are wanting, but I would like an explanation first, then I can
specifically ask questions.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Would you respond to that question, please?
MS. PACI: Sure, let me give you an overview on, on the project and, and how it was run. With
all our projects in Maui Lani before we start anything, we have an inventory survey
completed on the project where we perform test trenching in the area that's proposed to
be developed. A report is prepared on our findings, whether there is findings or no
findings. It's submitted to State Historic Preservation Division, and they will approve the
report or request additional testing if, if they feel it's needed. Now specific to the Maui
Lani Parkway, which was developed along with an extension of Kuikahi Drive, we were
aware of a couple of, of archeological finds prior to starting construction of the road.
And we actually had realigned the entire road to accommodate these burials to preserve
them in place, and that was done with the approval of the Burial Council. At the
commencement of construction, when we started specifically trenching for the
infrastructure, that's when we discovered additional burials within the road alignment.
Now a number of these burials were at significant depths, you're talking about
15 to 20 feet deep which is not a typical depth that we've, we've found burials in the past.
And it's, it's not a depth that you can easily trench to...during testing, you know, testing
you're looking at six, maybe eight feet deep trenches. As soon as we find a burial, SHPD
is notified, and they are notified during the course of construction when any additional
finds are, are discovered. At the request of State Historic Preservation, we started
looking at ways to realign the infrastructure that goes, was going to go within the Maui
Lani Parkway, to accommodate preserving the burials in place. What we started to do is
to test under the road alignments. When we found additional burials, then we shifted
adjacent to the road alignment but outside of it in the adjacent property, and that's how
we came up with the realignment of the sewer and the drain line. Now the current
construction alignment for the sewer and the drain line is clear of burials as far as we're
aware of. The area that we trenched did not have burials, and that's why that's the area
that we proposed to Wastewater Department to, to place the utilities in. And all this was
done with the concurrence of the State Historic Preservation. So the Wastewater
approved the alignment, State Historic Preservation also approved the plan for the, the
placement of, of the utility lines. Long-term the burials have been concrete capped and
we will be landscaping and preserving the area where the burials are located.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Victorino-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I will, I will allow the Members to ask questions because,
you know, she's addressed most of my concerns, and I'm, I'm happy to hear that the area
itself will not be touched where the iwi was found. And I'm, I'm thankful for that so -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, I'll let other Members ask questions. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, I'm gonna go down the line and I'm gonna provide
Member Pontanilla, the area representative, with his questions.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. I think she answered the question I was
gonna ask in regards to what is their process when they find iwi in a construction area,
and I think she answered that. In, in regards to that road that goes from Waiale towards
Maui Lani, I was privileged to see some of the realignment that was done because of
burials. There were burials at the intersection of Waiale and, and the new road which
they had to shift the intersection itself, and going down a little further, you know, they
also shifted more of the alignment. So I, I, I wanna thank Leiane for providing us
information in regards to what is their process whenever they come in contact with iwis.
Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, and I think, Member Pontanilla, that, that road where you're
referring to is Kuikahi.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: The new road, right. I'm gonna go down the Voting Members first.
Chair Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: No questions? Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you. Who was the engineer on this
project for the realignment?
MS. PACI: Warren S. Unemori Engineering.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then can you tell us the proximity of
the burials to this particular alignment?
MS. PACI: You know, I don't have that information with me, but that, the depths that the
sewerline and drain line had to go in, I know there was a, a fairly wide trench. So
there...I think there's quite a bit of space between the adjacent burials and, and the actual
infrastructure. I don't know specifically.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: But you don't know how...
MS. PACI: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I mean I think that would be important
for us to know because we're accepting an alignment here, and we know not where the
location of these sites that you say you're, you're spending time to preserve. And, and
then if, if there were a leak that happened in, in the infrastructure, and they were now
going to in someway...when water is, is leaking underground, there's a lot of things that
can occur. And if there were an inundation of this leak into the burial, then whose
liability would that be?
MS. PACI: The landowner.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Would be your liability?
MS. PACI: It's currently the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Is, is that written in this, this document for us to
accept that, that you are going to be responsible for any...anything that might happen to
this particular site?
MS. PACI: I don't believe it's in the documents, but it...it's, it's typically in the documents that
are approved by SHPD.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then is the Department informed at
all about the proximity of these sites, since they're accepting the, the alignment and they
are approving an alignment? Are they also informed about where these potential impacts
or, or sites may be?
MS. PACI: I know that they're aware that the burials are not within the alignment, but I'm not
sure if they're, they're...if they know specifically what the proximity is.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And that's my concern, Chair, is that
when we're accepting these alignments and we're, we're just merely reflecting on that
we've been there, we, we saw the trench, and while the trench is deemed not to be a
location of any sites, where are the sites located and what is this deflection? Is it being
moved a foot over to the, to the right so that we are not gonna be actually inundating the
site itself or...so what is that proximity to, to the infrastructure? And then the fact that
we will not be liable for anything that may occur in terms of the infrastructures, I guess,
damage to the site then, that's something that I'd like, you know, Corporation Counsel to,
to kind of respond to. So...
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: ...that's all my questions to, to, to the
landowner.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: And, and, Corp. Counsel, we can respond that, to that later once we get all
the questions done, or so would you note that down so you can. And before I get to
Member Baisa, just to see if I can clarify Member Kaho`ohalahala's questions. Where
the findings are, the sites, are they identified by GPS or survey points, and are there any
surface markers to identify that area?
MS. PACI: We do survey in where the burials are located. We do not do surface markers, and
that's a policy of, of SHPD. There is some confidentiality required...requirements with
the exact location of, of the burials.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So, to re-find this areas, you would do it by survey points or GPS points?
MS. PACI: Correct.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. I just wanted to, you know, see it exactly how you...how do you
identify the particular sites. Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair, no questions. I had similarly the same idea
you did. I wondered if you could figure out where they were. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Ms. Paci, and thank you
for being here. And you certainly added a lot more clarity and have answered most of my
questions. Could you...would you be able to provide us a, a letter...the letter from
SHPD and maybe anything from the Burial Council just to...so the, the Members can,
can look at it and kind of feel rest assured, and I, I appreciate your statements on record
that, you know, you folks are gonna be capping the area and treating it with the respect
that it deserves. So I, I think it, you know, if we had had those letters or comments from
those two departments, I guess with any project in general whenever there's the issue of
burials it's, I guess a red flag, and when, you know, the Committee's, you know, we
don't have any type of specific reports regarding the burials, there is that level of, you
know, uncertainty. So if you could provide that to us, that would be very helpful as well.
And, Mr. Chair, if, you know, I don't know what your direction is if you wanna move
this out today or we could defer and await the reports from Ms. Paci and Maui Lani, you
know, just, just so we-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --can feel some rest assured. But, or if we decide to move it
out of Committee and then, of course Mr. Mateo, as the Chairman for the Council, I don't
know if he would...that's a direction he would wanna look at at this point.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you --

INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 28, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No more comments. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --for that. Yeah. We, we, we're gonna, you know, continue with the
discussion and then come to that point. I, I have a few questions here, since we went
down one time throughout the Members. Is the report of the findings, and I'm assuming
when you said you did test trenching, that was with an archeologist?
MS. PACI: Correct.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, present. So, their...the report is identified most likely with the
archeologist's name and confirmation of the findings?
MS. PACI: That is correct.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. So does our DSA Department, I mean Development Service
Administration get a report of that?
MS. PACI: I don't believe they get the actual report, but they need a copy of the approval letter
from State Historic Preservation prior to approving our construction permits.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And so likewise then, I'm assuming the Department of
Environmental Management doesn't get a report either of the findings?
MS. PACI: No.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: And that's a concern because in their, in their inspection of the
construction of the sewerline, and also DSA, how do they identify where the area of the
findings are when they do their realignment? I, I have a hard time understanding if they
don't get a report, how do they identify the area of concern and the realignment?
MS. PACI: Well, the realignment was not determined by the Department. We proposed the
realignment based on additional testing in the area to, to find an area that was clear of
burials.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. Okay, but my concern would be when you change the
construction plans of a sewerline, there may be oversight required by our Department of
Environmental Management so that it complies with the standards of construction with
the County. If the developer does that on their own, how do we know the amended,
amended construction plans for that realignment meets the County's Code and standards?
MS. PACI: We proposed the realignment, and we submit the plans for approval prior to
construction.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And you submit that to DSA?
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MS. PACI: Yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. PACI: And, and Wastewater.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: And Environmental Management and Wastewater, okay. Let's see now,
and then my final question is, you, you mentioned that you do concrete casings of the
findings.
MS. PACI: The standard has been to, to concrete cap the burials, not just in the area of, of
infrastructure, but wherever we, we preserve and place burials. That way if there's any
digging in the area for whatever reason, that the concrete cap will give people indication
that they...that there is something there. Although everything is surveyed, typically
there's an easement or preservation area created around it, it's, it's just a, a, you know, a
secondary measure to, to try to protect the burials from any future disturbance.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Just clarify one thing for me with that and you may have
mentioned it in your description. But if there's multiple human remain findings, do you
concrete case individually as a total finding or just a perimeter casing of the area?
MS. PACI: It depends on the proximity of the burials. We've, we've done it both ways where
we've actually created almost like a concrete slab underneath to cover multiple burials.
In other cases we've done individual caps if, you know, if it's determined that that's the
most efficient way to do it.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. I really appreciate that information. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Who was the archeologist for this project, or did you have a lot
of 'em?
MS. PACI: No, we have one primary archeologist, it's Lisa Hazuka, with Archeological
Services.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And finally, you mentioned Burial Council being
involved in some of the roadway work. In the area of the sewerline easement, was Burial
Council also involved?
MS. PACI: They were not involved in the decision making because they were inadvertent finds,
which means they were found during the course of construction, the jurisdiction falls
under the State Historic Preservation Division. But they were given regular updates on
Maui Lani's projects during the course of construction.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: They were not, but they were given...?
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MS. PACI: They were provided updates on our findings throughout construction. But...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Including the sewerline easement?
MS. PACI: Correct, but the decision was actually under the jurisdiction of State Historic
Preservation.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And finally, you know, the, the concern of distance
from where construction is occurring and where the sites are located, is there a standard
by law as far as how far construction can occur from an identified site that is being
preserved?
MS. PACI: There is no standard. It, it's really up to State Historic Preservation.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So they dictate how close or how far our roadway is from a
burial or a sewerline easement is from a burial?
MS. PACI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and can you tell me what some of the distances are?
MS. PACI: Specific to our project or in general?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MS. PACI: I don't know, and I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: At the closest point.
MS. PACI: I, I'm not sure, I, I don't have that information.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It had to be approved by the Historic Preservation.
MS. PACI: Correct. And I'm not sure...oh, our engineer's here, but he doesn't have that
information with him.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. But there is no standard or law?
MS. PACI: There is no standard or law. I, I mean I've seen decisions by both the Burial
Council and State Historic Preservation where they've determined that preservation in
place is the priority, even if it's two feet away from a pipe, and I'm not saying that it's
two feet away from a pipe in this case. You know, what our engineer may be able to
speak to is, is to give you a description of, of what size trench we needed to put this line
in, because if you think about the width of the trench, how...and my understanding it's a
wide trench in order to get the lines in that deep, there were no burials in that trench that
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we've dug. So I can have our engineer come up and, and talk about the trench, give you
indication on, on the engineering of that.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Nishiki -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm not an expert.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --are you done?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, I guess, maybe Sol or someone that is familiar can, can,
can ask that question. But -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Well I, I, I-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I'm, I'm satisfied.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --yeah, I, I think, you know, what the testifier has, or I mean the
representative is, you know, those probably are dictated by the State Historic Preservation
Department. And also when they submit their realignment of the sewerline, she did
mention that, that had to go through DSA again for review and approval. So there are,
you know, several reviews that they have, have to go through to get it. I know you're
looking for a kind of distance, but she has indicated she does not know that and I guess
nor do the engineers.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I, I...my, my, my, my concern has been, and, and as all
of us know, the concern with the State Historic Preservation and the kind of dropping of
the ball or what is occurring there with manpower and, and some of the decisions, and
we've seen it happening in...on Kauai and, and, and, and the gamut. So I was happy to
hear that our Burial Council, who are members here, that live here, that are sensitive to it,
have been apprised of it, but I will check with Burial Council to see, you know, if they
indeed okay'd what was being done. My concern is to apprise them is one thing but, you
know, did you get any kind of response from them saying people are still concerned
about the distance or anything like that. Do you ever...you know, just, just because you
apprise it, doesn't mean that they okay it. Is that, or did they have any concerns at all?
MS. PACI: We didn't ask for any recommendations, it was primarily an update. You know, I, I
know with every project that we bring in front of them their primary consideration is
preservation in place. I don't believe it was discussed in this particular project about the
distance between the utilities and the burials.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and, and that's it, you know, you know, I mean, I
mean on the surface we think oh, well, everything's okay. But really, if you're just gonna
apprise 'em and, and not get any kind of response from 'em, what are we really getting,
Mr. Chairman?
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and so that's, that's my concern, and maybe a letter to
Burial Council to see if they had any concerns.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. And we'll take that under advisement as a Committee to look at
that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I just hope -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --that we would write to Burial Counsel on this. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Members...Council Chair Mateo-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank-CHAIR MEDEIROS: --then Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And I'm, I have no question for -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --Maui Lani.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: What about Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, not for her.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, any questions for the representative?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you. . . (inaudible). . . You mentioned that
inadvertent finds. In this realignment, then are you saying that they were inadvertent
finds?
MS. PACI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Which means that there were sites, or artifacts,
or something in the path of this realignment that was not previously known, but was
found inadvertently?
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MS. PACI: Found during the course of construction. Now the actual realignment where the
infrastructure was placed, there are no burials.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: But you had inadvertent finds?
MS. PACI: But in determine in determining where the realignment would go, we did have
inadvertent finds.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I just wanna make clear inadvertent finds
are, are cultural, cultural things that are found. Inadvertent only means that we're going
in a new direction, we had never tested it before, and we found stuff. So I just wanna
establish that, again, even in the fact that we're deflecting or realigning, that there were
sites that were found in this process. My only concern, Chair, is that this information,
whatever they are, inadvertent or sites that are known, somehow needs to be translated to
us in terms of how we're gonna maintain this infrastructure. And if we don't know about
them, and we don't know their proximity, and at this point, you don't even know the
proximity of the infrastructure to those known sites, but we already known that they were
inadvertent finds that are now--do you keep inadvertent finds, do you store them, do you,
do you, what, you just record them?
MS. PACI: No, the, the whole intent of this process was to preserve them in place, so leave
them in the ground where we found them. And...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: If they're in the alignment, that the
realignment...
MS. PACI: They're, they're not in the alignments. They're not in the actual alignment of the
utilities, they're in the proximity of them, but they're not in, actually in the alignment.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And is that fully described, your
inadvertent finds?
MS. PACI: Is it...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Is that reported and fully -MS. PACI: It's reported to SHPD.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --described?
MS. PACI: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So these would be other concerns that we
would have then in terms of where the utility is laid in proximity to inadvertent finds as
well?
MS. PACI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So there's another set of, of information
that we need to have aside from the known sites is these inadvertent sites that are
discovered that are in, in proximity to that. So, so we need to know that because at some
point in time when we go back in to repair, what do we do? Do we just go in and say
we've got a problem here and then just start digging at, at will because that's our main
focus as, as Environmental Management, Solid Waste is to take care of the, the...a
broken pipeline. And then how do we deal now with the fact that in the proximity of that
location, that there may be these other inadvertently found sites as well as those known
sites and then the responsibility to that? Is that our liability and that's the, the main
question I think the, you know, I would like to find out from Corporation Counsel as
well. So, I wanted to get the clarification, one, there are other discoveries that are termed
inadvertent at the same time that we're talking on a, on a realignment or a deflected
location of utilities. So...
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. PACI: If I may, just suggest-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Sure, go ahead, proceed.
MS. PACI: --our engineer is here, Darren Unemori, and if he's allowed to, to speak about how
the trench was dug, it would give you a sense of proximity. Because of the depth of, of
the infrastructure, the trench had to be quite wide. And so we did not find any burials
within the, the width of the trench. So I, I think that would give you a good indication of,
of the proximity, although we don't have, you know, specific drawings with us today.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And you have that person present?
MS. PACI: Yes, he's available.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. I, I think before we do that because we're extending ourselves
here, the Chair gonna take a quick recess. Member Pontanilla, you have something
urgent to ask at this time?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, just a fast question for the Department and maybe for
Ms. Paci. In regards to the final construction drawings or the as-builts, do you have
copies from the developer in regarding the as-built copies where they show all of the
utilities, all the pertinent information that can be recorded for our records?
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MR. ROLLINS: Yes, we have those on file.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Forget about that question. ... (Chuckles)...
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. If, if we're done with the representative, then I'll excuse her, and
then we're gonna take a ten-minute break for personal needs and, and to think about
things and then we'll return. Thank you so much for coming up and, and providing the
information you did.
MS. PACI: You're welcome.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: I appreciate it. Okay, Members, we're gonna be on recess to 10:35. This
meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

10:26 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:37 a.m.

CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . .(gavel). . . Members, the Infrastructure Management Committee
meeting of June 28, 2010 is now reconvened. Thank you, Members, for that short recess.
We're gonna continue where we left off, and I, I believe there was still questions from the
Members. Any questions from the Members? Then we're gonna ask Corp. Counsel to
respond to Member Kaho`ohalahala's question at this time, please.
MR. GALAZIN: Thank you. And I, I believe the question was what would be under the terms
of this agreement the extent of liability if you're talking about a wastewater spill in the
area. What I would, what I would point you to is in the proposed resolution, the
Exhibit...attached is Exhibit 1, of course is the easement document itself. On Page 2 of
that Exhibit, if you look at the Paragraph 2 which describes the use and restoration on the
premises, you want me to read just from this document, make sure everybody's on the
same page?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Corp. Counsel...
MR. GALAZIN: The grantee...
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Corp. Counsel, yeah, let's be sure everybody has it in front of them.
Everybody has it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page...what page?
MR. GALAZIN: This would be Page 2 of the Exhibit to the resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two of 12?

INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 28, 2010

MR. GALAZIN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Gotcha.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Proceed.
MR. GALAZIN: Okay. Thank you. Paragraph 2, entitled Use and Restoration on the Premises,
it states that grantee--meaning us--shall diligently maintain the sewer system
improvements in good and safe condition and repair. Without limiting the foregoing, the
grantee shall promptly repair any leaks, spills and overflow from the sewer system
improvement and all damages to the easement area and the surrounding area, and the
improvements thereon, resulting therefrom...which is pretty typical language in these
kinds of agreements for us. But I think, you know, not having seen the language of what
kind of agreement the property owner may have with SHPD, certainly they may bear
some responsibility as the underlying landowner. But under the terms of this agreement
there is at least the potential that, depending on the size of the leak, depending on the
extent of the damage, depending on the level of fault that we bore in the genesis of the
leak itself, certainly we may be looking at a situation where if they're close enough, we
would, we would bear...we would shoulder some of that responsibility.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Corp Counsel. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then just to clarify, your...we would
shoulder responsibility for inundation on the sites themselves should they...
MR. GALAZIN: It's certainly a possibility, you know, it would depend on a, a variety of, of
very specific factors, but it's, it's not ironclad that it's solely the landowner's issue.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And, and that's why I wanted to know
the proximity of these sites. And that would be an important thing for us to, to have if we
understand that we have some liability in terms of what may occur. And we're looking,
you know, not just today, we're putting in new infrastructure, but this infrastructure in
time was going to need some kind of a, a repair or maintenance. And should something
occur in the future, then, you know, that's something we should be also considering
where sites are concerned, because if something did occur, and especially to a, a burial
site, then we would have people up in arms about who's responsibility this was, who
allowed this to occur. And the action is today, the action to allow it to occur is, is
happening before us today. So I just wanna ensure that we understand what it is that we
are accepting when we simply accept the, the easement for infrastructure as the, as the
County of Maui. And, and today it's clear that we don't have all the answers before us,
but we are still going to possibly accept the, the responsibility for this. So, that...that's
my concern.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Members, if there are no questions, we're gonna,
without objections from the Members, bring down the representative, the engineer, of the
questions that wanted to be asked.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members. Member Nishiki, is your question for the engineer,
or for...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For Corp. Counsel.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Proceed with your question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. You know, in, in regards to what Sol's concern is,
shouldn't we somehow get that report that you said that SHPD might have? Because that
should be maybe part of this easement. And in that way our Department has an idea of
where all of these concerns may be for the sites.
MR. GALAZIN: Yes, well certainly, you know, when the representative brought that up, that's
the first I've heard of the existence, you know, I wouldn't be able to say one way or the
other whether it should be referenced or a part of the, the easement document without
knowing what it says.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, I guess you need to look at it, and, and give us some
legal advice-MR. GALAZIN: Yeah. That would -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --you know.
MR. GALAZIN: --certainly help.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But if you don't know and you haven't read it, then I don't
think you and anybody can give us any legal advice. So I...Mr. Chairman, I think it
would be pertinent upon the Corp. Counsel getting those copies and then maybe
addressing the concerns should in the future things like this occur and then our
Department goes in not knowing where anything is and then offend iwi.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And it's only because we know this today and we, we, we
should do something about it, I think. But -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Corp Counsel...yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --without him reading it or knowing it or I don't think -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --we can get any advice as to what perhaps we need to do
within the document.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. I think Mr. Galazin has a response.
MR. GALAZIN: Member Nishiki, let me, let me be clear, we can certainly give legal advice on
the existing document that is being proposed to you, and it's clear from the existing
document what it says, what the terms are. If you wanted to have something else
included with that, then yes I would need to see it first, but, you know, right now what's
being considered is what's being proposed before you. And these are the issues being
raised and these are the potential liabilities that we would be taking on.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. No, to answer what Sol referenced, wouldn't you have
some concerns, without getting those documents, about the future?
MR. GALAZIN: No matter whether we incorporate this document or not, there, there would be
concerns. The question is, I think more from an engineering standpoint, where are these
things located, what, you know, what kind of spill are we looking at. What are the
practical liabilities that we're being presented with. You know, from a legal standpoint,
we can never be 100 percent protected especially in an area where there are so many of
these iwi.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Members, we have an engineer from Maui Lani.
Would you identify yourself and your position?
MR. UNEMORI: Certainly, Mr. Chairman, my name is Darren Unemori. I'm a Civil
Engineering Consultant for Maui Lani and we're...our firm was involved in the design of
the roadway as well as the sewerline you're discussing this morning, as well as the
creation of the...or documenting of the, the creation of the easement which contains that
sewerline.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Members, questions for the representative?
Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. Unemori. My question really,
you know, is, is not so much, you know, the size of the trench as much as it is, is, is its
proximity to the sites themselves that are known and inadvertent, you know. So, so
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maybe you can just, you know, answer the question about, I mean, do you know that the,
that the realignment and its proximity to the known sites itself?
MR. UNEMORI: I, I...the work on that trench was done, oh, something beyond a year and a
half ago, so I don't have a clear recollection of how far the absolute distance of the
closest burial was. But it may be helpful, as Ms. Paci had indicated, for me to kind of
describe what, what she was trying to convey when she was explaining the, this concept
that the corridor or the trench in which the lines were laid, was free of burials. Now she
mentioned that the, the sewerline was installed at a, at a significant depth, I think
15 to 20 feet. In order to install a line like that, you need, of course, need to cut a trench.
Since we're working in sand it's not only necessary to cut straight down but to lay back
the sides of the trench in order to gain access to the bottom of the trench and comply with
OSHA regulations. So if you think of the, the trench three-dimensionally, what she's
really telling you is that the...not only is the immediate area above the, the sewerline line
clear of burials, but the trapezoidal excavation itself was also free of burials. And
although we don't know the distance of the closest point, as you rise towards the surface,
of course that distance becomes greater and greater because there were no burials in that
material that was taken out and then subsequently replaced. The other thing you can
understand from, from that description is that the, when the trenches were cut, the utility
lines were laid at the very bottom of the trench, and any burials would have been
encountered on the way down. So the things like the sewerline, basically sit below any
known burials so if you do have leakage, you know, it will go under the burials rather
than, than, than seep through the burial area. I guess the, the other thing that comes to
mind is the location of the line itself and access for maintenance. Sewerlines, much like
drain lines, are not completely unknown. Because they are basically straight pipe runs
that are marked at either end or that, that there are changes in direction by manholes, we
always know when we can see the manholes on the surface that the line between
them...where the line between them is. So in accessing the line in the future, we can
always predict where the alignment is gonna be, very reliably, and go down into that
same excavated prism that was created to originally install the line. So in that sense, it's
not very likely that you need to get into areas that you hadn't already exposed once
before.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I, I, I understand exactly what you're
saying. One, is that you are dealing with infrastructure within a sand dune area.
MR. UNEMORI: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So the soil itself, or the sand, the consistency of
the, the sand that we're dealing with is not the same as, as dealing with, with, with dirt
because of the...just the density of, of sand. The ability for sand to shift is much easier,
that's why you have to cut a trapezoidal trench -MR. UNEMORI: That's, that's right.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --instead of a straight one. So when you have a
leakage though, under, under sand, what occurs to the area of which there might be
pressure and water that you're adding now to a, to sand? What occurs?
MR. UNEMORI: Well, normally what happens in a situation where you've got say water
leaking out of a pipeline, is you'll normally get seepage into the surrounding ground.
When you have a permeable material like sand, what will tend to happen is any liquid
will tend to move laterally and then downward... simply because it's being moved by
gravity. So if you can imagine pouring water onto a...onto gravel, that will tend to move
laterally a bit, but it will also tend to go downward under the influence of gravity. So in
the case of a sewerline, which is not under significant pressure, usually sewerlines carry
normal fluid than you can fill into the, into the pipe itself. It's not like a, a portable
waterline that is pressurized from an elevated tank. In the case of a sewerline there's
very little pressure in the line, so if there is a leak, should there be a leak, you normally
get movement of water laterally and then down through sand, much like the analogy
about the water on gravel.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So you, you're saying that the
infrastructure right now is the pipes themselves are laid at a depth of what?
MR. UNEMORI: Well, it varies which pipe you're talking about, but the sewerline I think, I, I
believe, Ms. Paci recalled correctly, at a depth of 15 to 20 feet.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Fifteen to 20 feet. Okay, so you're saying that
we shouldn't have any concern as to what's occurring at the surface then, or what may
occur with a leak or anything at the surface then?
MR. UNEMORI: Well I, I, I guess, maybe to rephrase that, if you're worried about wastewater
contaminating a burial...a location where the burial is, where a burial is located in an
adjacent area, that's not likely to happen simply because of the, the vertical separation
between the burial and the, the line. And in order for future access to occur, you've
already excavated a large trapezoidal prism to originally install the line. As long as you
stay within that original prism, which is likely to happen for that depth, then you
probably will not encounter anything you didn't encounter before.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then there is an assumption then that
there is no burials below, below the depth of, of, of the...
MR. UNEMORI: Oh, that's, that's correct. I, I do make that assumption.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. So just so you know that the sand dunes
are dynamic and you should know that as an engineer and that they shift and overtime
we're talking not just today. We talk about the dynamics of this building of an area of
sand dunes that span thousands of years and for the inhabited times of when, when
Hawaiian's actually use those areas. But we may be talking at, at, at depths much lower
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then what you're describing right now. My only concern is that when there is going to be
seepage and when there is going to be a need for repair of these pipelines, perhaps, that if
we do not know what is, what is the proximity of these sites to that area, we as a County
would be responsible to go in and repair it, and perhaps we have to retrench again. And
that is my concern is that the trenching, perhaps, when you're going down to repair a pipe
like this--and I, I'm not the, the plumber, so to speak--but I'm just trying to understand is
that when there is seepage and I have to go down to a depth of 20 feet in the future to fix
this perhaps, it's gonna require us to...do you, do you dig a trench that's gonna be the
same size, do you dig one that's, you know, what does the, the saturation of that liquid in
the soil now mean in terms of going down. Does that mean it's going to be impacting a
larger area? And then just the fact that you say seepage, you know, seepage into a site, I
think people would be offended by that, you know, if a site were in close proximity and
we just say well, it's just seeping into the site, you know. But anyway those are the
things that I think the Department should have information of so that they understand
how they're gonna be responsible for, for going in and maintaining these kids of issues,
and then what will they understand in terms of where sites are concerns or burials are
concerns and how to, how to treat them in the process, you know. So I'm glad you share
that information. I hope those guys understand that fully, but you...no one has answered
the question about the proximity of these sites to the infrastructure, you know.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Member Kaho`ohalahala, you done?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yes, thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Any other questions, Members, for the representative? Seeing
none, thank you for coming down and for the information you've provided, Mr. Unemori.
MR. UNEMORI: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS:
Okay.
discussions...Chair Mateo?

Members, having seen no further questions or

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you. I just wanted to ask the Department,
I guess because of the, the, the ongoing discussion, your process, when you got, when
you got the note of realignment from the developers, and you had indicated that you
primarily just look for structural integrity of the line itself, was any additional concerns?
MR. ROLLINS: We were aware they were in conversations with HS...excuse me, SHPD,
regarding locations. We kind of deferred to their expertise as to, as to where the location
was in relation to any finds. So we were, we were aware of that. So when we looked at
the relocation, we looked at what responsibility we, we would have for the line should
anything occur, and we, we knew we were outside of, of any affected area.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And you knew you were outside of an affected area because
of...? Was it the report or because of the information provided to you based on the
realignment?
MR. ROLLINS: Information sent to us based on the realignment. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: From the developer?
MR. ROLLINS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So that never caused you any, any other, or additional concern?
Because the report apparently does not give you any kind of proximity, so what were
your concerns when, when you looked at that particular request to realign?
MR. ROLLINS: Well, when we look at our sewerlines, we typically don't have many problems
at all with sewerlines that are build with PVC pipes such as these. We, we knew that the
depth was significant. We knew if we had a problem with this pipe, in the future it would
probably just be a single point repair. We can do point repairs using trench-less
technology, going inside the pipe and doing aligning if that was required. So we, we took
all those things into consideration when we looked at this realignment.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, you know, I, I guess just to the Department, I think when
we're dealing with iwi, yeah, it brings up a whole different scenario, yeah, because of the
sensitivity of, of the issue. So I, I think this gives you a need right now to take a look at
the processes you, you deal with in, in addressing some of these things, because the very
basics like proximity is so important because problems do occur. And if we're going to
inherit some of these problems, then by all means, our, our liability will continue. So
perhaps it's time to start taking a look at process, yeah. Thank you. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Council Chair Mateo. Members, any other questions? Seeing
none, the Chair would like to make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, in considering the amount of concerns and request for
information and the process of things, without objection, the Chair will defer this Item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members, so ordered.
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ITEM NO. 34: BILL RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT ON STEEP TERRAIN
(C.C. No. 09-291)

CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, we now go to our second item on our agenda, and that will be
Item 34, a BILL RELATING...I'm sorry, yes...a BILL RELATING TO THE
DEVELOPMENT ON STEEP TERRAIN. The Committee is in receipt of the following.
County Communication No. 09-291, from Councilmember Sol Kaho`ohalahala,
transmitting a draft bill to require, under certain conditions, the submittal of an
engineering slope hazard report with a grading permit application. Correspondence dated
November 13, 2009, from the Department of Corporation Counsel, transmitting a bill...a
proposed bill entitled A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 20.08,
MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT ON STEEP TERRAIN.
The proposed bill incorporates nonsubstantive revisions to the draft bill. So, Members, at
this point, I'm gonna have the Director of Public Works give an overview of this item
and opening comments. So, Director Arakawa, if you would please, and would you
introduce your assistant there?
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. With me this morning, I have Lance Nakamura, he's
with our Development Services Administration. The item, as you mentioned, stems from
a draft bill entitled A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT
ON STEEP TERRAIN introduced by Councilmember Kaho`ohalahala. The purpose of
the proposed, draft bill is to require, under certain conditions, the submittal of an
engineering slope hazard report with a grading permit application. The bill was modeled
after Ordinance 04-27 of the City and County of Honolulu. And the Committee met on
this item on December 14th , 2009, and conducted a site inspection to Wailuku Heights on
January 11 th , 2010. The Department submitted a letter to the Committee dated
November 2 nd , 2009, which recommends that the definition of engineering slope hazard
report be amended to require that it be prepared by an engineer which is already defined
by Code as a Professional Civil Engineer, licensed in the State of Hawaii. The
Department also submitted a response to the Committee dated February 22, 2010,
pertaining to questions on grading. Large grading projects are typically inspected on a
regular basis, basically one, every one to two days, and smaller grading projects for
construction such as house pads or driveways are typically inspected on an as-needed
basis or on a complaint basis or if a problem arises. Administrative fines for grading or
grubbing without a permit are $200 for the initial fine and $100 for the daily fines. Two
written warnings must be sent prior to issuance of the notice of violation and initial fine.
And daily fines begin 30 days after the initial fine and double every 30 days after
the...that the violation is not corrected, up to a maximum of $1,000. As we mentioned in
our response, the Department would have no objection to increasing the minimum
penalty. There was also a response to the Committee dated April 30 th , 2010, regarding
the most appropriate slope percentage to trigger the requirement of an engineering slope
hazard report with a grading permit application. However, our research on similar
ordinances in other municipalities revealed a wide range of slope percentages to trigger
requirements, thus we were not able to find data which would aid in determining the most
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appropriate slope percentage to trigger an engineering slope hazard report. The
Council-initiated bill places the threshold at a 40 percent slope. Due to the wide range of
slope percentages in various municipalities as well as the absence of specific engineering
criteria on the matter, the Committee may want to select a specific slope percentage as a
matter of policy. While the proposed requirement for an engineering slope hazard report
is a positive step forward, the Committee should be aware that there are certain
limitations to the current bill. While the establishment of a threshold percentage may be
a matter of policy, an issue of concern is the geographic scope of the engineering slope
hazard report. The bill pertains to proposed construction, including grading, affecting
drainage patterns within 100 feet of an existing slope greater than 15 feet in height and
with a grade steeper than 40 percent, or modification to an existing slope with a cut
greater than 15 feet in height and a grade steeper than 40 percent. Although the proposed
bill is primarily concerned about possible rockfall hazards pertaining to grading activities,
a rockfall hazard could certainly exist outside of the graded area. For instance a rockfall
hazard may exist 150 feet, 500 feet or even 1 mile away. Rockfall issues which have
occurred within the City and County of Honolulu, originated significant distances away
from the graded area, and in some cases there was really no graded area. On the other
hand, extending the scope of the engineering slope hazard report does raise some equity
issues. If an engineering slope hazard report is required to cover property beyond the
graded area, the land may not be owned by the same person doing the grading. Plus it
would be difficult to justify requiring a landowner to fund an engineering slope hazard
report and pay for mitigative measures on land that he or she does not own. Nevertheless
the draft bill does provide additional safeguards for areas being proposed for grading.
But the bill is not a panacea for all rockfall hazards which may occur. We are in support
of the bill, and that concludes our comments, and we'd be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Director Arakawa. Members, the floor is now open for
questions for the Department, the Director. Any questions? Member Pontanilla,
followed by Member Molina, followed by Member Baisa.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This proposed ordinance, how does it affect
existing homes or, you know, if they wanna remodel or, or repair driveways or
reconstruct driveways?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Department?
MR. ARAKAWA: Basically the criteria in the bill was what I've read. It pertains to proposed
construction, including grading, affecting drainage patterns within 100 feet of an existing
slope, greater than 15 feet in height and with a grade steeper than 40 percent, or
modification to an existing slope with a cut greater than 15 feet in height and a grade
steeper than 40 percent. So if any proposed construction meets that criteria, then this
engineering slope hazard report would be required of the applicant.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So existing homes that have driveways steeper than
40 feet would be subject to this ordinance?
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MR. ARAKAWA: If they're proposing renovations to the property or changes to the property or
construction which would meet the criteria, then the answer is yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Director. You
know, so as it is right now, what triggers are there for the Department to require, you
know, a slope hazard report, right now, aside from this bill? Is there anything out there?
What, what are the triggers?
MR. ARAKAWA: Right now there is no requirement for an engineering slope hazard report.
This is a new requirement that's being introduced by this bill. But as was noted by a
testifier earlier, we have existing grading regulations that are on the books. So basically
from our standpoint, the bill supplements what currently is on the books.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So it supplements, yeah, in what we...okay. Well that's,
that's good, good for us to know that basically nothing exists in this area. You know, you
mentioned that you have no objections to raising the penalties. Can you give us a, a
starting point then in terms of what you would recommend, I mean what are our
limitations there? I don't know if Corp. Counsel can add into that as well. I mean it's
what, $200, a minimal fine, and can we bump it to 1,000. I mean, I know we'd have to
have some kind of rational for whatever figure we'd have to come up with. But I guess,
for me, Mr. Chair, I'd like to get some guidance from the Department and Corporation
Counsel in this area.
MR. GALAZIN: Yeah be, before the, the Department opines, yeah, I would point out you are
correct that, that fines that we impose do have to have some kind of rational nexus to the
cost incurred by the County and investigating the manpower, the review, the re-submittal
of applications if need be. So the courts don't really pry into the exact mechanics of it
unless it seems out...outrageous. The Charter, of course, doesn't impose a maximum
$1,000 a day fine, but I would, I would think the way that costs are for the Department,
they can provide more information on this, but certainly, I think anything up to that
depending on their assessment of it could be...could certainly be reasonable.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Galazin. And, Mr. Director, so
everything was based from like 1998, I think was the last time these fine...fines were
established? So would you say doubling the fines is reasonable, based on your
personnel? 'Cause if we pass something like this, I would think we'd have to...we're
looking at enforcement issues, maybe the possibility of more personnel. I know you've
listed in your letter, I think six employees or six personnel related to inspecting. Can, can
you give us your thoughts in terms of the fines, what, what you would think would be a, a
fair amount as to increase?
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MR. ARAKAWA: I, I can give you a comparison. For instance, if you...the initial fine for a, a
building permit, building without a building permit, is $500. So, I mean that's, you
know, a point of comparison if the Council wishes to have a grading permit, the violation
in that same category, we'd certainly have no objection to that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. And, and, Mr. Chair, I ask this because any
person who wants to make this kind of development generally a lot of these folks have
deep pockets, and if the fines are too small, you know, if it's pocket change, well, it may
not be a deterrent. But if we make the finds stiff enough, within the legal parameters of
the law, it may give some food for thought for the property owner to consider, you know,
violations or, or not going into that area, to let it, you know, take a chance and break the
law. So, you know, I'm, I'm in support of totally increasing the, like the Department,
increasing the fine. So that could serve as a deterrent and make those who develop, you
know, think before they act, yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Member Molina. Member Gladys...Baisa, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's okay, Chair, thank you very much. Chair, I wanted to
ask...Mr. Arakawa, we had a testifier this morning who mentioned that she would like to
see a requirement for neighborhood notification in the bill, in the, in the proposed
ordinance. Can you comment?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Baisa, the grading ordinance as it's set up now is basically a
ministerial matter, like a building permit, which does not require any kind of notification.
I think in reviewing some of the hillside development ordinances in other municipalities,
what the other municipalities have done, and this is what we've brought up with the
Committee before, is that they have basically instituted a, a discretionary permit process
for any kind of hillside development that may occur. And with a discretionary permit
process, you may have a hearing and notification, and if that's the route that the Council
wants to go to then, you know, there are a number of examples out there. But the way the
bill is set up now, is basically a ministerial process which does not require any kind of
notification.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. It appears to me that based on, you
know, what we're hearing and seeing in the community, it might not be a bad idea that
we do have a neighborhood notification process so the neighbors can be made aware of
what's going on and possibly avoid problems after it's done. So I'll pursue this. Thank
you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Baisa. Other Members? Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Just one quick follow up. Mr. Director, the, the
fines that you currently collect, that's used to offset I guess your inspection, your grading
compliance personnel? Three field inspectors, the one engineer field inspection, and the
two engineers, are those, the fines are used for that, typically?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina, I believe most of our fines...I think, in fact, some
of our fines, and, and I don't know which ones, but some of our fines go to the General
Fund. Some of our fine...our fees and our fines go to the Plan Review Fund, and offhand
I'm not sure which ones, maybe Councilmember Pontanilla has a better idea. But
basically as far as the staff is concerned, we, we don't believe that any additional staff
would be needed if this bill passes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. That's good to know. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS:
Thank you, Member Molina.
Member Kaho`ohalahala?

Any other questions?

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair, I had a draft of amendments to the
current language in the bill that was handed out, and I just wanted to be sure at some
point if we can get some time to, to review the draft and from the Department, some of
their, their responses to the proposed amendments.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Members, if there are other discussions...Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, before we go into this amendments, just a question for the
Department. You know, this, this is for proposed development on steep terrain, let me
ask you this question. So this does not involve unpaved roads, streets, or even highways
that go even higher than 40 percent? This is strictly building?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Department?
MR. ARAKAWA: ...Councilmember Pontanilla, the, the bill doesn't make any differentiation
between roads and any utility work that may occur. If it affects a slope greater than the
threshold noted in the bill, then it would be subject to the bill.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, I have a question for the Department, and it, it follows up on
Member Pontanilla's questions and kind of his concern now that...with that last response.
I know that certain grades of roadways which are within a subdivision or roadway,
there's a restriction on the steepness or the grade, and that at a certain grade you have to
concrete it. Is that correct, Department?
MR. ARAKAWA: Council Member...Mr. Chair, generally for steeper roads within a
subdivision, I believe it's over 20 percent, we would require the subdivider or the
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developer to concrete the roads, but it's not really a hard and fast rule. We
would...generally concrete would last longer and it's more durable, so we would prefer
that on, on steep roads, yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Such as the case in Wailuku Heights?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, that's correct.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So with, would this restriction or requirement also be applied to someone
building or developing a property even for a single-family residence that would somehow
have a very steep, beyond 20 percent grade, that they would need to comply with the
Department's requirement for a concrete driveway?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well it, it would depend on the engineering slope hazard report itself, but
like I said, you know, if the proposed construction exceeds the threshold mentioned in the
bill, then they would be subject to the requirements.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And just a final question. So if, if a single-family residence
property submits their building plans or...and in the review of that plans the DSA would
look at their driveway being very steep, so would this apply at that point of the review?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, it would.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Director. Okay, Members, any further questions?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I'll try to keep this brief prior to
Member Kaho`ohalahala's amendments. But, you know, most of us...I, I think all of us
are not engineers here, and I don't know about anybody else, but I would really
appreciate a visual. You know, we went on the site visit and we're told late...remember
we went in January, and this is now the end of June, getting close to July, that, that
property was about approximately 50 percent. Surely there must be some kind of
computer simulation or some pictures or something that can show us what like 25 percent
looks like, what 40 percent looks like, what 50 percent looks like. It would make it a lot
easier. As it is, this is very abstract and it's difficult. I'm sure that our, our professionals
must have access to that.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Baisa. And, and, you're, you're correct. Visually, in
three dimensional sometimes it's easier to understand, then even looking...going up in a
site inspection and looking at something, and the engineers at that time that came with us
did not have the means to determine that exactly. They gave us an estimate of what that
particular degree of slope was. So, yeah, you bring up a good question at a good point.
Members, any other questions? Seeing none, before we go to Member Kaho`ohalahala,
this is the difficulty sometimes in complying with the Sunshine Law, that we receive
these things at the beginning of the meeting and we have had...not had any time to
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review them. Our departments haven't had time to review them with their staff, so it
makes it very difficult, but at this point of the process, Members, I'm gonna give us, a, a
break in time to read through this and somehow make sense of it, and then we'll
reconvene. So, Members, is 15 minutes or to 11:30, sufficient?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quick request, and, and I don't know if this is
possible. Is there a possibility during the break that the Department could send
somebody or have somebody come up with some of these visuals that Ms. Baisa is just
referring to? 'Cause I, too, am not an engineer. I think all of us in this room--probably
except your, because your years of experience in the Public Works--have really very little
understanding of what 25 percent to 40 percent. I'm trying to read all this, I'm like, okay
now what does this all really mean, you know, in, in the whole scope of things. So is that
a possible request that something that could give some kind of visual what these really
mean? Because other than that, it's really hard to make a decision.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: It is. And I appreciate your question, Member Victorino, combined with
Member Baisa's, and let me ask the Department. Director, is that a possibility within the
certain period of time that those visuals could be provided and, and brought to the
Chambers for review?
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, we can sketch something up, I mean just as a rough guide, a
visual guide. I mean that's not a problem.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and if you could produce that and make enough copies to be
distributed, we'd appreciate it. So how much time would you require, Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: We can do that in a few minutes provided I, I can have a ruler.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: ...(Chuckles)... Okay. What we're gonna do is we're gonna take the
break to...for the Members to look at the amendments, and during that time if you could
make that and provide copies, we'd appreciate it. Members, so at this time, we're gonna
take a recess so that we can review the amendments, and I'm gonna reconvene at 11:35.
Meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

11:20 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:38 a.m.

CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . .(gavel). . . Okay. The meeting of the Infrastructure Management
Committee is reconvened. And at this time, we're gonna continue, but let me make some
comments. The Chair's intent is to defer this item, just because of so much things that
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we need to understand and get information on, allow the Department time to review this
in its entirety with its staff, and, and just have the Members more aware of what the
changes are. So at this time, I'm gonna provide the opportunity for
Member Kaho`ohalahala to give us your summary of amendments.
Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I, I really appreciate the, the
opportunity really to take into consideration this proposed draft, and I, I do hope that the
Members will have a chance to, to take a closer look at them and that the Department will
also have the opportunity. But in looking at what is currently drafted, then the proposed
amendments that I'm bringing into is to include a purpose and an intent section to the, the
ordinance. So this is intended to give us a real broad understanding of why we
would...why we're creating such an ordinance for, for, for these steep slopes. And if you
look at them, all of the bulleted points in there, lead us to understand what the purpose of
the...and the intent of the bill would be. The second amendment being proposed is to
look at the, the replacing the, the word 40 with 25 and that's looking at the slope itself.
So I think the fact that we're wanting to fully understand what that means is, is something
that will give us some time and the Department perhaps, I know that they've taken this
opportunity to give us this handout. But it sometimes would...is helpful for us to get a
better perspective, you know, looking at photographs, looking at the actual structures that
will give us a better sense of what this means rather than trying to stand here and figure
out what that actually is on the land itself. And, so I would, I would think that this would
be helpful in terms of allowing for a little bit more time doing this. The other sections
have to do with a, you know, we made the idea of having a, a, a report, you know, a, a
slope hazard report. And it's because of what has already occurred that there is no
requirement whatsoever in place, and this would make that another essential part of any
project that's moving forward or that has slopes and that they would be required to meet
these kinds of standards, but that would be another amendment. And at the very end, I, I
think that, you know, we are looking at trying to understand these, these slopes again, and
if we're looking at engineering...definitions of slope versus, you know, what 90 degree is
versus an, an engineering's version of that, that was presented in testimony. I think that's
what the, the last portion of this is, is trying to lead towards, so that we have a better
understanding. But I, I think, you know, allowing us a little bit more time, Chair, we can
bring further examples that help this Committee to fully understand why would be
proposing these kinds of amendments in the bill itself. So, so, with that, Chair, I
appreciate the time that you're giving us to allow for this kind of a deferral so that we
may find more information to bring to the Committee so that we can make a, a final
determination.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Yes indeed, I know
there's...hearing the testimony this morning and, Members, you know, speak on the item,
there is an urgency for this. But I, I think we wanna consider your amendments in an
appropriate way so that it's considered by the departments that will be not only affected
but the enforcement of this, that they have enough time to do that, and for the Members
to have enough time to do that. So the Chair appreciates the submittal,
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Member Kaho`ohalahala, and your willingness to allow, you know, more time for us to
look at this so that we can have a better understanding of it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And I, I just -CHAIR MEDEIROS: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --want to just mention, Chair, that...to the
Members, that it's coming in at this point because Staff that's been helping me to, to do
this have been out sick for quite awhile now, and, so now that you've scheduled it, I
thought that we had to get something, you know, that I wanted to prepare for this
meeting. And so with that consideration, that's part of the reason why it's coming in at
this time. Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that explanation. And, Corp. Counsel, would you
like to add, add anything to this for the Members so that when they're reviewing this they
have a better understanding?
MR. GALAZIN: Yeah, just, just to add a little clarification. You know, of course looking at the
Sunshine Law in terms of actions that can be taken and, you know, Section 92-1,
Subsection 1 and Subsection 2, you know, states the intent of the part is to protect the
people's right to know, and that the provisions requiring open meeting shall be liberally
construed. And there have been opinions by the Office of Information Practices...you
know, I, I look at one from 2002 that was involving Maui County, again, and the question
becomes, if you're looking at a bill, is it...and substantial revisions to a bill such that
does it make it a new bill. And the, I guess the ultimate goal of the Sunshine Law is to
urge on the side of caution in these cases, and it's certainly clear that 01P recommends,
whenever possible, to postpone to another meeting to allow the public the, the greatest
opportunity to come and provide testimony. And so I think it's important that, you know,
Member Kaho`ohalahala has a chance to explain his proposals and get that out there for
the members of the public to, to sit and think and digest and be able to return on another
date along with the Department and you folks to, to provide a more open discussion of it.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Galazin Members, any questions or comments?
Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question to Public Works, and this is in
regards to, you know, the different levels of, I guess, grades. I, I know both of you know
Papa Avenue. When you look at those homes along Papa Avenue, because of the setback
is only 20 feet, some of those driveways probably is, you know, you're looking at
50 percent. And, and again, you know, all based on the 20-foot setback from your front
property line to the front of the house. I use to live in one of those homes where I think
the grade was even greater than 50 percent. So can you provide us with some comments
in regards to that type of layout? Because I know some of the homes are being
reconstructed at this time in that particular area, 6th Increment area.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Department?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Pontanilla, perhaps the best thing to do since the Chair has
indicated his intention, if you have a...we can take a look at some of those homes on
Papa Avenue and perhaps give you some more detailed information about how, you
know, the bill if it passes would or could apply. And maybe that would help the
Committee in coming to a decision on the matter.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I, I would take a look at the total subdivision, not only
over there but also Maui Meadows, because you do have similar conditions, yeah. So
thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. And, Director Arakawa, in, in looking at what Member Pontanilla
is suggesting, would the Department take some photos at that time so that they can be
shared with the Committee Members?
MR. ARAKAWA: Sure, we can do that as well. The Committee sends us a request to that, to
that effect, we can certainly provide it at the next scheduled Committee meeting.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. So we will send a request from Staff, to you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And since we're making these requests, can we, can we
include some...also some examples of Wailuku Heights, the one in question and others
within the area on both sides, because there are a number of these examples that would
clearly illustrate what was and what is along with Papa and, and some of the other ones,
Maui Meadows, yeah. If you don't mind, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. So, Director, included in the request would be a sampling of
Wailuku Heights, especially the areas of concern right now, Maui Meadows that have
been proposed, and 1 st Increment -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sixth.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --in Kahului. Oh, 6 th Increment, I'm sorry, on...along Papa Avenue and
those...okay. Any other questions? Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah, I think some of the other areas that might
be considered is Launiupoko. Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. So we'll include that in our
request. Any other questions, Members? So the Chair is ready to make his
recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members. The Chair recommends that we, without objection,
defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR MEDEIROS: No objections? So ordered. Members, that completes our work for this
morning, and we have a, a meeting this afternoon at 1:30. Any announcements on that,
for the afternoon meeting?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, Chair, thank you. One thirty, the Planning
Committee will continue its deliberations on the Maui Island General Plan.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. And so if there's no questions or further discussion,
the Chair of the Infrastructure Management Committee will now call this meeting in
adjournment. ... (gavel).. .

ADJOURN: 11:50 a.m.
APPROVED:

BILL KAUAKEA MEDEIROS, Chair
Infrastructure Management Committee
im:min:100628
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